UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Before the
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Release No. 73297 / October 3, 2014

INVESTMENT ADVISERS ACT OF 1940
Release No. 3943 / October 3, 2014

INVESTMENT COMPANY ACT OF 1940
Release No. 31275 / October 3, 2014

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING
File No. 3-16187

ORDER INSTITUTING ADMINISTRATIVE

In the Matter of AND CEASE-AND-DESIST PROCEEDINGS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 15(b) OF THE
PAUL T. MANNION, JR. and SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
ANDREW S. RECKLES SECTIONS 203(f) AND 203(k) OF THE
INVESTMENT ADVISERS ACT OF 1940,
Respondents. AND SECTION 9(b) OF THE INVESTMENT

COMPANY ACT OF 1940, MAKING
FINDINGS, AND IMPOSING REMEDIAL
SANCTIONS AND A CEASE-AND-DESIST
ORDER

The Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”) deems it appropriate and in the
public interest that public administrative and cease-and-desist proceedings be, and hereby are,
instituted pursuant to Section 15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”),
Sections 203(f) and 203(k) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (“Advisers Act”), and Section
9(b) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (“Investment Company Act”) against Paul T.
Mannion, Jr. and Andrew S. Reckles (“Respondents”).

I,
In anticipation of the institution of these proceedings, Respondents have submitted Offers

of Settlement (the “Offers”) which the Commission has determined to accept. Solely for the
purpose of these proceedings and any other proceedings brought by or on behalf of the



Commission, or to which the Commission is a party, Respondents admit the Commission’s
jurisdiction over them and the subject matter of these proceedings, and consent to the entry of this
(“Order”), as set forth below.

i
On the basis of this Order and Respondents’ Offers, the Commission finds that:

1. At the time of the relevant conduct, Mannion and Reckles were registered
representatives associated with HPC Capital Management Corp., a SEC-registered broker-dealer,
and were the sole owners of and portfolio managers at PEF Advisors, LLC and PEF Advisors Ltd,
the investment advisers to Palisades Master Fund, LP (the “Fund”), an unregistered pooled
investment vehicle. Mannion, 52, resides in Duluth, Georgia. Reckles, 44, resides in Milton,
Georgia.

2. In August 2005 Mannion and Reckles each took valuable warrants belonging to the
Fund, exercised those warrants, and had the shares that were issued deposited into their personal
brokerage accounts. In June 2006, Mannion and Reckles informed the Fund’s investors that they
had “transfer[red]” to themselves these warrants that belonged to the Fund, and they compensated
the Fund for the warrants by reducing their personal ownership interest in the Fund by an amount
equivalent to a total of $325,000, representing the amount of the proceeds they had received when
they sold the shares.

3. On October 19, 2010, the Commission initiated a civil action entitled Securities and
Exchange Commission v. Paul T. Mannion, Jr., et al., Civil Action Number 1:10-cv-03374-WSD,
in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia (“District Court”). The
Commission’s complaint alleged, among other things, that Mannion and Reckles’ taking of Fund
warrants violated Section 206(2) of the Advisers Act, which makes it unlawful for any investment
adviser, through jurisdictional means, directly or indirectly to engage in any transaction, practice,
or course of business which operates as a fraud or deceit upon any client or prospective client.

4. On March 25, 2013, the District Court entered summary judgment against Mannion
and Reckles finding that their taking of the Fund’s valuable warrants violated Section 206(2) of the
Advisers Act.

5. As a result of the conduct described above, Mannion and Reckles willfully*
violated Section 206(2) of the Advisers Act, which prohibits fraudulent conduct by an investment
adviser.

! A willful violation of the securities laws means merely “‘that the person charged with
the duty knows what he is doing.”” Wonsover v. SEC, 205 F.3d 408, 414 (D.C. Cir. 2000)
(quoting Hughes v. SEC, 174 F.2d 969, 977 (D.C. Cir. 1949)). There is no requirement that the
actor “‘also be aware that he is violating one of the Rules or Acts.”” Id. (quoting Gearhart &
Otis, Inc. v. SEC, 348 F.2d 798, 803 (D.C. Cir. 1965)).
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V.

In view of the foregoing, the Commission deems it appropriate and in the public interest to
impose the sanctions agreed to in Respondents’ Offers.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 15(b) of the Exchange Act, Sections 203(f) and 203(k) of
the Advisers Act, and Section 9(b) of the Investment Company Act it is hereby ORDERED that:

A. Respondent Mannion cease and desist from committing or causing any violations
and any future violations of Section 206(2) of the Advisers Act.

B. Respondent Reckles cease and desist from committing or causing any violations and
any future violations of Section 206(2) of the Advisers Act.

C. Respondent Mannion be, and hereby is:

barred from association with any broker, dealer, investment adviser,
municipal securities dealer, or transfer agent;

prohibited from serving or acting as an employee, officer, director, member
of an advisory board, investment adviser or depositor of, or principal
underwriter for, a registered investment company or affiliated person of such
investment adviser, depositor, or principal underwriter; and

barred from participating in any offering of a penny stock, including:
acting as a promoter, finder, consultant, agent or other person who
engages in activities with a broker, dealer or issuer for purposes of the
issuance or trading in any penny stock, or inducing or attempting to induce
the purchase or sale of any penny stock;

with the right to apply for reentry after two (2) years to the appropriate self-
regulatory organization, or if there is none, to the Commission.

Any reapplication for association by the Respondent will be subject to the applicable laws
and regulations governing the reentry process, and reentry may be conditioned upon a number of
factors, including, but not limited to, the satisfaction of any or all of the following: (a) any
disgorgement ordered against the Respondent, whether or not the Commission has fully or partially
waived payment of such disgorgement; (b) any arbitration award related to the conduct that served
as the basis for the Commission order; (c) any self-regulatory organization arbitration award to a
customer, whether or not related to the conduct that served as the basis for the Commission order;




and (d) any restitution order by a self-regulatory organization, whether or not related to the conduct
that served as the basis for the Commission order.

D. Respondent Reckles be, and hereby is:

barred from association with any broker, dealer, investment adviser,
municipal securities dealer, or transfer agent;

prohibited from serving or acting as an employee, officer, director, member
of an advisory board, investment adviser or depositor of, or principal
underwriter for, a registered investment company or affiliated person of such
investment adviser, depositor, or principal underwriter; and

barred from participating in any offering of a penny stock, including:
acting as a promoter, finder, consultant, agent or other person who
engages in activities with a broker, dealer or issuer for purposes of the
issuance or trading in any penny stock, or inducing or attempting to induce
the purchase or sale of any penny stock;

with the right to apply for reentry after two (2) years to the appropriate self-
regulatory organization, or if there is none, to the Commission.

Any reapplication for association by the Respondent will be subject to the applicable laws
and regulations governing the reentry process, and reentry may be conditioned upon a number of
factors, including, but not limited to, the satisfaction of any or all of the following: (a) any
disgorgement ordered against the Respondent, whether or not the Commission has fully or partially
waived payment of such disgorgement; (b) any arbitration award related to the conduct that served
as the basis for the Commission order; (c) any self-regulatory organization arbitration award to a
customer, whether or not related to the conduct that served as the basis for the Commission order;
and (d) any restitution order by a self-regulatory organization, whether or not related to the conduct
that served as the basis for the Commission order.

E. Respondent Mannion shall, within 30 days of the entry of this Order, pay a civil
money penalty in the amount of $75,000 to the Securities and Exchange Commission. If timely
payment is not made, additional interest shall accrue pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 8 3717. Payment must
be made in one of the following ways:

1) Respondent may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which
will provide detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request;

2 Respondent may make direct payment from a bank account via Pay.gov
through the SEC website at http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm; or




3) Respondent may pay by certified check, bank cashier’s check, or United
States postal money order, made payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and hand-delivered or mailed to:

Enterprise Services Center
Accounts Receivable Branch

HQ Bldg., Room 181, AMZ-341
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard
Oklahoma City, OK 73169

Payments by check or money order must be accompanied by a cover letter identifying Paul
T. Mannion, Jr. as a Respondent in these proceedings, and the file number of these proceedings; a
copy of the cover letter and check or money order must be sent to Julie M. Riewe, Co-Chief of the
Asset Management Unit, Division of Enforcement, Securities and Exchange Commission, 100 F
St., NE, Washington, DC 20549-5010.

F. Respondent Reckles shall, within 30 days of the entry of this Order, pay a civil
money penalty in the amount of $75,000 to the Securities and Exchange Commission. If timely
payment is not made, additional interest shall accrue pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 8 3717. Payment must
be made in one of the following ways:

1) Respondent may transmit payment electronically to the Commission, which
will provide detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instructions upon request;

2 Respondent may make direct payment from a bank account via Pay.gov
through the SEC website at http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.htm; or

3) Respondent may pay by certified check, bank cashier’s check, or United
States postal money order, made payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and hand-delivered or mailed to:

Enterprise Services Center
Accounts Receivable Branch

HQ Bldg., Room 181, AMZ-341
6500 South MacArthur Boulevard
Oklahoma City, OK 73169

Payments by check or money order must be accompanied by a cover letter identifying
Andrew S. Reckles as a Respondent in these proceedings, and the file number of these
proceedings; a copy of the cover letter and check or money order must be sent to Julie M. Riewe,
Co-Chief of the Asset Management Unit, Division of Enforcement, Securities and Exchange
Commission, 100 F St., NE, Washington, DC 20549-5010.



V.

It is further Ordered that, for purposes of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of
the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. 8 523, the findings in this Order are true and admitted by
Respondent, and further, any debt for disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other
amounts due by Respondent under this Order or any other judgment, order, consent order, decree
or settlement agreement entered in connection with this proceeding, is a debt for the violation by
Respondent of the federal securities laws or any regulation or order issued under such laws, as set
forth in Section 523(a)(19) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(19).

By the Commission.

Brent J. Fields
Secretary



